
Page 1 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL
CALL

2. OPEN FORUM

3. CONSENT AGENDA

a. APPROVAL OF October 16, 2017 AGENDA
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

i. September 18, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes
ii. October 5, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes

c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING September 30, 2017
i. Approval of Warrant No. 604

4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS
a. Board of Commissioners to share communications
b. Presentation of the Audit Report by Sean Hickey, Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
c. Oak Brook Park District receives accreditation status from the Commission for

Accreditation of Park and Recreation Agencies (CAPRA), which accredits park and
recreation agencies for excellence in operation and service.

5. STAFF RECOGNITION
a. None

6. REPORTS:
a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report
b. Finance & Human Resources Report
c. Recreation & Facilities Report
d. Parks & Planning Report



Page 2 of 2 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Request for Proposals for Waste and Recycling Collection Services

8. NEW BUSINESS
a. Resolution 17-1017: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving

an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Family Locker Room
Renovation with CW Burns Co., Inc. (***Requires Board Action at this meeting.)

b. Resolution 17-1018: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Oak Brook Little
League Rental Agreement (***Requires Board Action at this meeting.)

c. Oak Brook Park District Agreement for Naming Rights (***Requires Board Action at this
meeting.)

9. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON November 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m.

10. ADJOURNMENT



 

Page 1 of 3 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL [Call to Order the Regular Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of 
Commissioners and ask the Recording Secretary to conduct the Roll Call.] 

 
2. OPEN FORUM [Ask whether there are any public comments under “Open Forum.” If necessary, 

the President may advise speakers to observe the rules set forth in Section 1.1VII B of the 
Rules of the Board of Park Commissioners.] 

 
3. CONSENT AGENDA [Request a motion (and second) to approve taking a Single Omnibus Vote 

on the Consent Agenda, as Presented. Roll Call Vote—VOTE MUST BE UNANIMOUS. 
 
Then ask for a motion (and second) to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented.  Roll Call 
Vote…] 
  

a. APPROVAL OF October 16, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. September 18, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
ii. October 5, 2017 Special Meeting Minutes  

c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING September 30, 2017 
i. Approval of Warrant No. 604 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS [Discussion Only]  

a. Board of Commissioners to share communications  
b. Presentation of the Audit Report by Sean Hickey, Lauterbach & Amen, LLP [Invite Mr. 

Sean Hickey of Lauterbach & Amen, LLP to present the Audit Report.] 
c. Oak Brook Park District receives accreditation status from the Commission for 

Accreditation of Park and Recreation Agencies (CAPRA), which accredits park and 
recreation agencies for excellence in operation and service. [Photo Opportunity.] 

 
5. STAFF RECOGNITION  

a. None 
 

6. REPORTS: [Discussion Only] 
a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report 
b. Finance & Human Resources Report 



Page 2 of 3 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 

c. Recreation & Facilities Report
d. Parks & Planning Report

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Request for Proposals for Waste and Recycling Collection Services [Request a Motion

and a second to accept the proposal from Waste Management, Inc., for waste and
recycling services, and to authorize an agreement between the Oak Brook Park District
and Waste Management, Inc. for a monthly contract cost of $475.  Roll Call Vote…]

8. NEW BUSINESS
a. Resolution 17-1017: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving

an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Family Locker Room
Renovation with CW Burns Co., Inc. (***Requires Board Action at this meeting.) {Request a
motion and a second to waive the Board’s Rules to approve at this meeting, Resolution
17-1017: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving an Increase
in the Contract Price of $10,000 or more for the Family Locker Room Renovation with
CW Burns Co., Inc. for shower handle extension.  Roll Call Vote…

Then request a motion and a second to Approve Resolution 17-1017: A Resolution 
Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving an Increase in the Contract Price 
of $10,000 or more for the Family Locker Room Renovation with CW Burns Co., Inc. for 
shower handle extensions. Roll Call Vote…] 

b. Resolution 17-1018: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Oak Brook Little
League Rental Agreement (***Requires Board Action at this meeting.) [Request a motion
and a second to waive the Board Rules, to authorize and approve at this meeting the
Oak Brook Little League Rental Agreement.  Roll Call Vote…

Then request a motion and a second to authorize and approve the Oak Brook Little
League Rental Agreement as presented.  Roll Call Vote…]



Page 3 of 3 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any individual who is in need of a reasonable accommodation in  
order to participate in or benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners should  
contact:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director at 630-645-9535. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 

c. Oak Brook Park District Agreement for Naming Rights (***Requires Board Action at this
meeting.) [Request a motion and a second to waive the Board Rules, to approve at this
meeting, the Oak Brook Park District Agreement for Naming Rights.

Then request a motion and a second to approve the Oak Brook Park District Agreement
for Naming Rights.  Roll Call Vote…]

9. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON November 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m.  [Announce the Next
Regular Board Meeting of the Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners will be held on
November 13, 2017 at 6:30 p.m.]

10. ADJOURNMENT [Request a motion and a second to adjourn the meeting.  Voice Vote – “All
in favor…”] 



Page 1 of 7 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
September 18, 2017 – 6:30 p.m. 

Canterberry Room 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL 
CALL  

 
President Knitter called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.in the Recreation Center’s 
Canterberry Room.  Commissioners Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter answered 
“present.”   Commissioners Truedson and Tan were absent.  Also present were Laure Kosey, 
Executive Director, Dave Thommes, Director of Recreation and Facilities, Marco Salinas, Chief 
Financial Officer, and Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning.    

 
2. OPEN FORUM  

 
President Knitter asked if there were any public comments.   
 
There were no public comments. 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, 
to approve taking a Single Omnibus Vote on the Consent Agenda, as presented.  

 
 There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  
 
 Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  
 Absent:  Commissioners Truedson and Tan 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.   

  
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote.  

 
 Ayes:  Commissioners Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
 Nays:  None  
 Absent:  Commissioners Truedson and Tan 

 
a. APPROVAL OF September 18, 2017 AGENDA 
b. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

i. August 21, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 
c. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT ENDING August 31, 2017 

i. Approval of Warrant No. 603 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS  
   

a. Board of Commissioners to share communications 



Page 2 of 7 
 
 

President Knitter commended staff for attending the recent Village board meeting in 
support of the Park District in its efforts for approval by the Village of the revised master 
plan. 
 
Ms. Kosey noted that the Park District was recently notified by the Village about a non-
traditional vending machine-like car sales company coming to Jorie Boulevard.  She 
noted that it will have no effect to any Park District property and that the Park District 
was only notified due to its close proximity to this new business. 
 

b. Annual Report  
 

Laure Kosey presented the Annual Report, which can be found in the Park District 
records.  She said the goal of the Report is to be as transparent as possible.  
 
President Knitter said the Annual Report looks great and the board concurred.  Ms. 
Kosey said it will be posted to the Park District website.  
 
Commissioner Truedson entered the meeting at 6:35 p.m.  
 

5. STAFF RECOGNITION  
 

a. Alfonso Corral, Recreation Intern 
 
President Knitter introduced Mr. Corral to the board.   
 
The board welcomed Mr. Corral.  
 

6. REPORTS:  
 

a. Administrative, IT, and Marketing Report 
 
Ms. Kosey presented her report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
 
Ms. Kosey noted that the Revised Master Plan was approved by the Village last week. 
 
Ms. Kosey said the Village recently contacted her about whether the Park District would 
be interested in staffing the lifeguards at the Bath & Tennis Club and performing daily 
maintenance only.  She said it would be treated as fee for service and that an 
Intergovernmental Agreement would be required. 
 
Both President Knitter and Commissioner Carson favored the idea as a gesture of 
cooperation, but President Knitter noted that it must be made clear that the Park District 
would only be involved in an operational role only, and that payments to the Park District 
for services rendered should include the cost of hiring a coordinator if needed. 
 
Commissioner Trombetta said he is against the idea stating that to enter into this 
Agreement would be to expose the Park District to criticisms.  If the pool has problems, 
and he said it is an old pool, the patrons will blame the Park District.  
 
Ms. Kosey stated that the only maintenance task the Park District would be responsible 
for would be chemical maintenance.  She said lifeguards are trained to check the 



Page 3 of 7 
 
 

chemical levels in the water several times a day.  She said no other maintenance would 
be performed by the Park District.  
 
Commissioner Truedson said he is okay with the idea but could also understand not 
doing it.  He too said if the pool has problems, the Park District would be blamed. 
 
After lengthy discussion, the board concurred to have Ms. Kosey write up a proposal for 
services to the Bath & Tennis Club for lifeguard and chemical maintenance services.  
 
Ms. Kosey stated that Dave Thommes was approached by the Village to see whether 
the Park District would be interested in programming and maintaining the clay tennis 
courts at the Bath & Tennis Club. She noted that the Village would still own the courts. 
 
Mr. Thommes said he asked Alan Pop whether he would be interested in programming 
the clay courts.  Mr. Pop said he does not believe the clay courts generate enough 
revenue to warrant the time it would take to program them. 
 
Commissioner Carson said taking over the clay courts would be difficult with existing 
members already there who want things done in a very certain way. She said the 
situation would just be a bit too touchy.   
 
Commissioner Truedson agreed with Commissioner Carson. 
 
Commissioner Trombetta said he would hate to divert Mr. Pop’s attention from what is 
profitable in order to take time to program these courts.   
 
Mr. Thommes noted that the season for these courts is very small and this makes it even 
more difficult to make a profit.  
 
President Knitter said if it is only a matter of the Park District renting the clay courts to 
program them, then Mr. Thommes and Mr. Pop should investigate the idea further.  
President Knitter directed Mr. Thommes to look into the matter.  
 
There was no further discussion regarding Ms. Kosey’s report. 
 

b. Finance & Human Resources Report 
 

Marco Salinas presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records.  
 
In regard to the decrease in preschool revenue which was discussed at last month’s 
meeting, Mr. Salinas said it was simply a deferring/timing issue. In reality, enrollment is 
the same. 
 
Mr. Salinas said the annual audit is complete and the auditing firm will be presenting 
their report at next month’s meeting. He noted that the Park District received a clean 
report.  
 
There were no questions or comments regarding Mr. Salinas’ report.  

 
 
 



Page 4 of 7 
 
 

c. Recreation & Facilities Report 
 
Dave Thommes presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records.  
 
Commissioner Carson said patrons have asked her whether the temporary lockers 
across from the classrooms could be kept there permanently because they are 
convenient.  
 
There were no further questions or comments regarding Mr. Thommes’ report.  
 

d. Parks & Planning Report 
 
Bob Johnson presented his report, which can be found in the Park District records. 
There were no questions or comments regarding Mr. Johnson’s report.  
 
Mr. Johnson said gabion weir work continues in Central Park, and that is has been a 
long process due to extensive permitting and new requirements that will be followed 
Village wide.  
 
Mr. Johnson said he is currently preparing bid packages related to the all-inclusive 
playground and LED lighting projects with the bidding process set to begin in December 
for work to begin in early spring, 2018.  
 
Mr. Johnson said staff bottled over 100 bottles of honey today.  
 
There were no questions or comments regarding Mr. Johnson’s report.  
 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Amendment to the Articles of Agreement for the Gateway Special Recreation 
Association  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Trombetta, 
to approve the amendment to the Articles of Agreement for Gateway Special Recreation 
Association.   
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 

 
b. New Administration Policy and Procedure: 6.15 Video and Electronic Surveillance Policy 

and Procedure  
 

Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Trombetta, 
to approve the new Administrative Policy and Procedure: 6.15 Video and Electronic 
Surveillance Policy and Procedure.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 



Page 5 of 7 
 
 

Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 

 
c. Amendment to Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual: Section 4.8 Fund 

Balance/Net Assets Policy  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Truedson, to approve the amendment to the Administration Policies and Procedures 
Manual: Section 4.8 Fund Balance/Net Assets Policy.  
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 

 
d. Resolution 17-0918: A Resolution Amending the District’s Deferred Compensation Plan  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, 
to approve Resolution 17-0918: A Resolution amending the District’s Deferred 
Compensation Plan 
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Request for Proposals for Waste and Recycling Collection Services  

 
This issue was presented for discussion only.  
 
Mr. Johnson noted the request for proposal is needed because the current contract is 
expiring. 
 

  There was no further discussion.  
 

b. Resolution 17-0920: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 
an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More (Family Locker Room Project)  
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Trombetta, 
to waive the Board’s Rules to approve, at this meeting, Resolution 17-0920: A 
Resolution authorizing and approving a change order Involving an Increase in the 
contract price of $10,000 or more for the Family Locker Room Renovation with CW 
Burns Co., Inc and DBM Services for shower and toilet accessories, trim and upgraded 
faucets and backerboard repairs.  
 
President Knitter asked whether we have the money to do this? 



Page 6 of 7 
 
 

 
Mr. Thommes said yes, and that this will cure rot issues in these areas.   
 
There was no further discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Carson, 
to approve Resolution 17-0920: A Resolution authorizing and approving a change order 
involving an increase in the contract price of $10,000 or more for the Family Locker 
Room renovation with CW Burns Co., Inc and DBM Services for shower and toilet 
accessories, trim and upgraded faucets and backerboard repairs.   
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 
 

c. Resolution 17-0921: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving 
an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More (Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade)  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, 
to waive the Board’s Rules to approve, at this meeting, Resolution 17-0921: A 
Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change Order Involving an Increase in the 
Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Tennis Center HVAC Upgrade with Pandecon, 
Inc. for the installation of an additional fire sprinkler head and related plumbing work. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Carson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, 
to approve Resolution 17-0921: A Resolution Authorizing and Approving a Change 
Order Involving an Increase in the Contract Price of $10,000 or More for the Tennis 
Center HVAC Upgrade with Pandecon, Inc. for the installation of an additional fire 
sprinkler head and related plumbing work. 

 
Mr. Thommes said this will correct a problem with sections of the old drop ceiling which 
were missing and deemed a fire hazard.  
 
There was no further discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioner Truedson, Carson, Trombetta, and President Knitter 

  Nays:  None  
  Absent:  Commissioner Tan 

 
 

9. THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS WILL BE HELD ON October 16, 2017, 6:30 p.m.  
 
President Knitter announced the next meeting of the Oak Brook Board of Commissioners will be 
held on October 16, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. 



Page 7 of 7 
 
 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Trombetta, to 
adjourn at the hour of 7:07 p.m. 
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by voice vote.  
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 



1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE  

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
October 5, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND ROLL CALL 
 

President Knitter called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. in the Recreation Center’s 
Canterberry Room.  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Trombetta, and President Knitter answered 
“present.”   Commissioner Carson was absent.  Also present were Laure Kosey, Executive 
Director, Dave Thommes, Director of Recreation, and Steven Adams, Park District attorney. 

 
a) Approval by a majority of the Commissioners present to allow Commissioner Carson to attend 

the meeting by audio conference, as she is unable to physically attend because of a family or 
other emergency as provided in section I-G-1 (iii) of the Board Rules. 
 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to allow 
Commissioner Carson to attend the meeting by Audio Conference, as she is unable to physically 
attend because of a family or other emergency as provided in section I-G-1 (iii) of the Board Rules. 

 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Trombetta, and President Knitter 
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Commissioner Carson 

 
2) APPROVAL OF THE October 5, 2017 AGENDA OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, 
to approve the October 5, 2017 Agenda of the Special Meeting. 

 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson Trombetta, and President Knitter 
Nays:  None 
 

3) OPEN FORUM 
 

President Knitter asked if there were any public comments. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 

4) COMMUNICATIONS 
 

a) Commissioners to share communications 
 

There were no communications. 
  



2 | P a g e  
 

5) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a) None 

 
6) NEW BUSINESS 

a) None 
 

7) CONVENE TO THE CLOSED SESSION Pursuant To 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11) for the Discussion 
of Pending, Probable or Imminent Litigation. 
 

Motion:  Commissioner Trombetta made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, 
to convene at to Closed Session at the hour of 6:35 p.m. for the purpose of discussing and 
approving Closed Meeting Minutes pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21) and for the purpose to discuss 
Pending, Probable or Imminent Litigation pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11). 

 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson Trombetta, and President Knitter 
Nays:  None 
 

8) CLOSED SESSION 
a) Discussion and Approval of Closed Meeting Minutes, July 17, 2017 
b) Discussion of Pending, Probable or Imminent Litigation 
 

9) RECONVENE TO THE OPEN SESSION 
 

Motion:  Commissioner Tan made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Truedson, 
to reconvene at 7:51 p.m. to the Open Session of the October 5, 2017 Special Meeting. 

 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by roll call vote. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Truedson, Tan, Carson Trombetta, and President Knitter 
Nays:  None 

 
10) POTENTIAL ACTION ON ITEMS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There was no action taken. 
 

11) NEXT REGULAR MEETING: October 16, 2017, 6:30 p.m. 
 

President Knitter announced the next meeting of the Oak Brook Board of Commissioners will be 
held on October 16, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. 

 
12) ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion:  Commissioner Truedson made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Tan, to adjourn at 
the hour of 7:51 p.m. 
 
There was no discussion and the motion passed by voice vote. 

 
_________________________________________ 

Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 



 Original 
2017/2018 

Annual Budget 
 September 
2017 Actual 

 2017/2018 
Year-To-Date

Actual 

 2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2016/2017 Year-
To-Date Actual

2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2016/2017

Percent 
Change

REVENUES

 Administration 
Property Taxes  $      1,528,000  $    601,094  $     1,394,845 91.3%  $        1,378,312  $                  16,533 1.2%

Personal Property Repl. Taxes                95,000          11,930               45,059 47.4%                  34,387                      10,673 31.0%

Investment Income                10,000                892                 4,265 42.6%                    3,493                           771 22.1%

Other                  3,000                194                       54 1.8%                       575                          (520) -90.5%

 Central Park                97,000          19,766               71,650 73.9%                  53,121                      18,528 34.9%

 Dean Property                         -                     -                          -   N/A                    3,000                      (3,000) -100.0%

 Building-Recreation Center              987,062          23,139             306,139 31.0%                341,362                    (35,223) -10.3%

 Central Park West                79,750             5,899               30,220 37.9%                  49,783                    (19,563) -39.3%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,799,812$      662,913$    1,852,232$      66.2% 1,864,033$        (11,802)$                 -0.6%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 932,503$          62,921$      319,130$         34.2% 306,386$             $                  12,744 4.2%

 Central Park 608,519            47,319         230,157           37.8% 249,107              (18,950)                   -7.6%

 Saddlebrook Park 17,870              1,291           7,002                39.2% 3,519                  3,483                      99.0%

 Forest Glen Park 28,631              2,122           13,651             47.7% 12,646                1,006                      8.0%

 Chillem Park 7,465                 630              5,123                68.6% 1,783                  3,340                      187.3%

 Dean Property 13,948              1,927           9,317                66.8% 6,046                  3,271                      54.1%

 Professional Services 81,200              1,140           4,613                5.7% 31,367                (26,754)                   -85.3%

 Contracts- Maintenance DNS 37,000              3,752           4,102                11.1% 9,013                  (4,911)                     -54.5%

 Building-Recreation Center 964,376            63,476         318,624           33.0% 320,935              (2,311)                     -0.7%

 Central Park West 63,214              2,913           13,487             21.3% 16,070                (2,583)                     -16.1%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,754,726$      187,490$    925,206$         33.6% 956,871$            (31,665)$                 -3.3%

 TRANSFERS OUT 410,000$          -$             -$                  0.0% -$                         -$                             N/A

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND
TRANSFERS OUT

3,164,726$      187,490$    925,206$         29.2% 956,871$            (31,665)$                 -3.3%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES AND 

TRANSFERS OUT
(364,914)$        475,423$    927,026$         -254.0% 907,162$            19,864$                  2.2%

Note> Fiscal year 2017/2018 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).
When comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of 
+/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District

Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

General Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited
Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through September 30, 2017 and 2016

41.67% completed (5 out of 12 months)

Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 10/11/2017



 Original 
2017/2018 

Annual Budget 
 September 
2017 Actual 

 2017/2018 
Year-To-Date

Actual 

 2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2016/2017 
Year-To-Date 

Actual

2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2016/2017

Percent 
Change

REVENUES

 Administration 
Property Taxes  $         894,000  $    341,742  $         793,018 88.7%  $         783,612  $                   9,405 1.2%

Personal Property Repl. Taxes                32,000             3,756               14,185 44.3%                10,825                        3,360 31.0%

Investment Income                12,000             1,282                  6,132 51.1%                  5,132                        1,000 19.5%

Other                  3,000                115                     870 29.0%                  1,046                         (176) -16.8%

 Fitness Center              849,212           75,239             365,575 43.0%              315,592                     49,983 15.8%

 Aquatic Center              474,032           24,178             189,104 39.9%              216,414                    (27,310) -12.6%

 Aquatic Recreation Programs              607,588             7,885             294,088 48.4%              376,080                    (81,992) -21.8%

 Children's Programs                83,960             7,667               50,868 60.6%                40,786                     10,082 24.7%

 Preschool Programs              309,767           33,091               88,145 28.5%              118,905                    (30,760) -25.9%

 Youth Programs              168,335             3,182             158,989 94.4%              161,732                      (2,743) -1.7%

 Adult Programs                53,890             7,747               36,083 67.0%                34,064                        2,020 5.9%

 Pioneer Programs              169,850             3,096               54,746 32.2%              101,919                    (47,173) -46.3%

 Special Events and Trips                91,765           11,523               58,304 63.5%                50,732                        7,572 14.9%

 Marketing                96,700             1,000               19,017 19.7%                10,550                        8,467 80.3%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,846,099$      521,502$    2,129,122$      55.4% 2,227,388$      (98,266)$                -4.4%

EXPENDITURES

 Administration 896,234$          40,551$       242,836$         27.1% 252,774$           $                  (9,938) -3.9%

 Fitness Center 695,987            38,941         235,619            33.9% 236,584            (965)                        -0.4%

 Aquatic Center 864,800            32,715         284,036            32.8% 318,226            (34,190)                   -10.7%

 Aquatic Recreation Programs 319,880            3,466           99,792              31.2% 114,487            (14,695)                   -12.8%

 Children's Programs 80,668              3,039           20,607              25.5% 19,674              933                         4.7%

 Preschool Programs 247,199            16,525         50,677              20.5% 50,177              500                         1.0%

 Youth Programs 139,340            6,481           80,484              57.8% 76,913              3,571                      4.6%

 Adult Programs 49,351              2,779           14,270              28.9% 14,940              (670)                        -4.5%

 Pioneer Programs 166,191            8,764           36,174              21.8% 71,215              (35,041)                   -49.2%

 Special Events and Trips 91,430              8,337           51,133              55.9% 33,496              17,637                    52.7%

 Marketing 333,851            17,126         120,248            36.0% 117,223            3,026                      2.6%

 Capital Outlay 363,000            -                    32,761              9.0% 54,380              (21,619)                   N/A

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,247,931$      178,724$    1,268,637$      29.9% 1,360,088$      (91,451)$                -6.7%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES

(401,832)$        342,779$    860,485$         -214.1% 867,300$          (6,815)$                  -0.8%

Note> Fiscal year 2017/2018 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).
When comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of 
+/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District
Recreation Fund Revenue and Expenditure Summary - Unaudited
Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through September 30, 2017 and 2016

41.67% completed (5 out of 12 months)

 Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance 
Highlighted items reflect more than 10% 

change

Prepared by: Marco Salinas Last Update: 10/11/2017



 Original 
2017/2018 

Annual 
Budget 

 September 
2017 Actual 

 2017/2018 
Year-To-Date

Actual 

 2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual as a % of 
Annual Budget 

2016/2017 Year-
To-Date Actual

2017/2018 Y-T-D 
Actual Higher/
(Lower) than 
2016/2017

Percent 
Change

REVENUES
 Administration  $            4,900  $                624  $           2,804 57.2%  $                4,391  $                 (1,586) -36.1%

 Building- Racquet Club                1,700                      67                   414 24.3%                        391                            22 5.7%

 Programs- Racquet Club        1,457,500            120,130           683,891 46.9%                626,239                     57,652 9.2%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,464,100$    120,821$         687,109$       46.9% 631,021$            56,088$                 8.9%

EXPENSES
 Administration 710,040$        46,749$           220,411$       31.0% 211,947$             $                   8,464 4.0%

 Building- Racquet Club 366,920          16,065             96,561            26.3% 97,663                 (1,102)                    -1.1%

 Programs- Racquet Club 490,371          23,278             181,346          37.0% 159,504               21,842                   13.7%

 Capital Outlay 495,000          161,112           375,097          75.8% 22,151                 352,946                 1593.3%

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,062,331$    247,205$         873,415$       42.4% 491,265$            382,150$              77.8%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENSES

(598,231)$      (126,384)$       (186,306)$      31.1% 139,756$            (326,062)$             -233.3%

Note> Fiscal year 2017/2018 highlighted items reflect a variance of one month or greater (i.e. +/- 8.33%).
When comparing current fiscal year to prior fiscal year, highlighted items reflect a variance of 
+/- 10.00% or greater.

Oak Brook Park District
Tennis Center (Recreational Facilities Fund) Revenue and Expense Summary - Unaudited

Fiscal Year-to-Date Activity through September 30, 2017 and 2016
41.67% completed (5 out of 12 months)

 Highlighted items reflect more than 8.33% variance Highlighted items reflect more than 10% change

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 10/11/2017



Note> In December 2016 the Park District recorded $1,163,610 in bond proceeds in the Capital Projects Fund.  This is the primary reason for the large increase in YTD 
revenues during FY 2016/2017.

$7
36

,6
06

 

$2
,7

22
,5

39
 

$3
,1

88
,7

18
 

$3
,7

73
,2

35
 

$5
,4

06
,2

55
 

$6
,0

71
,0

50
 

$6
,5

42
,2

96
 

$7
,0

62
,1

64
 

$7
,5

28
,3

43
 

$7
,8

61
,7

31
 

$8
,1

70
,1

85
 

$8
,5

79
,0

95
 

$7
86

,6
58

 

$2
,8

51
,1

18
 

$3
,3

35
,1

78
 

$3
,8

96
,4

73
 

$5
,5

89
,8

87
 

$6
,2

76
,9

54
 

$6
,7

13
,3

50
 

$8
,3

51
,3

63
 

$8
,8

50
,1

02
 

$9
,2

37
,4

90
 

$9
,5

71
,9

86
 

$1
0,

06
1,

89
3 

$8
16

,7
85

 

$2
,8

91
,5

92
 

$3
,3

30
,7

84
 

$3
,9

05
,0

50
 

$5
,5

86
,2

44
 

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Revenues (excluding transfers in)

YTD 2015/2016 Revenues YTD 2016/2017 Revenues YTD 2017/2018 Revenues

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 10/11/2017



Note> During June 2017 the Park District recognized three payroll disbursements when compared to two disbursements in the prior year.  This is the primary reason for
the increased Y-T-D expenditures in June 2017 over the same period in 2016 and 2015.  The increases in August and September 2017 are primarily driven by
increased capital expenditures in our Capital Projects Fund and Tennis Center (HVAC upgrade, reflective ceiling, family locker room).

$3
00

,4
72

 

$8
31

,6
47

 

$1
,8

44
,6

03
 

$2
,4

02
,9

37
 

$3
,0

80
,0

07
 

$4
,2

61
,4

75
 

$4
,8

73
,8

69
 $5

,7
73

,4
89

 

$6
,4

84
,1

85
 

$7
,0

15
,2

81
 

$7
,5

51
,4

57
 $8

,4
09

,4
31

 

$3
05

,5
81

 

$8
71

,0
85

 

$1
,9

01
,6

35
 

$2
,5

35
,4

02
 

$3
,1

57
,7

89
 

$4
,2

65
,0

81
 

$4
,8

71
,2

33
 

$5
,5

60
,6

26
 

$6
,3

07
,4

13
 

$6
,8

68
,1

72
 

$7
,4

26
,8

14
 $8

,4
46

,5
71

 

$2
93

,8
76

 $1
,1

27
,5

30
 

$1
,8

68
,7

66
 $2

,7
56

,6
10

 

$3
,5

24
,5

60
 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $9,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Expenditures/Expenses (excluding transfers out)

YTD 2015/2016 Expenditures YTD 2016/2017 Expenditures YTD 2017/2018 Expenditures

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 10/11/2017



$4
36

,1
34

 

$1
,8

90
,8

92
 

$1
,3

44
,1

15
 

$1
,3

70
,2

97
 

$2
,3

26
,2

48
 

$1
,8

09
,5

76
 

$1
,6

68
,4

28
 

$1
,2

88
,6

75
 

$1
,0

44
,1

58
 

$8
46

,4
49

 

$6
18

,7
28

 

$1
69

,6
64

 

$4
81

,0
77

 

$1
,9

80
,0

33
 

$1
,4

33
,5

42
 

$1
,3

61
,0

71
 

$2
,4

32
,0

98
 

$2
,0

11
,8

73
 

$1
,8

42
,1

17
 

$2
,7

90
,7

37
 

$2
,5

42
,6

89
 

$2
,3

69
,3

18
 

$2
,1

45
,1

73
 

$1
,6

15
,3

22
 

$5
22

,9
09

 

$1
,7

64
,0

63
 

$1
,4

62
,0

18
 

$1
,1

48
,4

39
 

$2
,0

61
,6

84
 

$- $- $- $- $- $- $-

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

Oak Brook Park District- Consolidated Year-to-Date Net Surplus/(Deficit)

YTD 2015/2016 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2016/2017 Net Surplus/(Deficit) YTD 2017/2018 Net Surplus/(Deficit)

Prepared by:  Marco Salinas Last Update: 10/11/2017



CURRENT
MONTH
ACTUAL

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

ANNUAL
BUDGET

FUND NAME
GENERAL CORPORATE FUND

REVENUE 662,913$    1,852,232$  2,799,812$
EXPENSES 187,490$    925,206$  3,164,726$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 475,423$    927,026$  (364,914)$

RECREATION FUND
REVENUE 521,502$    2,129,122$  3,846,100$
EXPENSES 178,724$    1,268,637$  4,247,931$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 342,779$    860,485$  (401,831)$

IMRF FUND
REVENUE 78,111$  186,320$  185,750$
EXPENSES 14,587$  81,300$  200,000$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 63,524$  105,020$  (14,250)$

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND
REVENUE 38,944$  92,917$  60,250$
EXPENSES 2,574$  68,352$  168,305$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 36,370$  24,565$  (108,055)$

AUDIT FUND
REVENUE 8,850$  20,581$  14,130$
EXPENSES 11,513$  11,513$  27,850$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (2,663)$  9,069$  (13,720)$

DEBT SERVICE FUND
REVENUE 123,678$  287,076$  331,250$
EXPENSES -$  -$ 330,914$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 123,678$    287,076$  336$

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

 SEPTEMBER, 2017

1
Prepared By: N Strathdee

10/10/2017



CURRENT
MONTH
ACTUAL

Y-T-D
ACTUAL

ANNUAL
BUDGET

FUND NAME

OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
SUMMARIZED REVENUE &  EXPENSE REPORT

 SEPTEMBER, 2017

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES FUND
(TENNIS CENTER)

REVENUE 120,821$    687,109$  1,464,100$
EXPENSES 247,205$    873,415$  2,062,331$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (126,384)$   (186,306)$ (598,231)$

SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
REVENUE 36,934$  85,727$  117,750$
EXPENSES 1,706$  41,007$  124,700$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 35,228$  44,720$  (6,950)$

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
REVENUE 1,115$  36,333$  413,000$
EXPENSES 109,167$    152,692$  2,352,884$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (108,053)$   (116,359)$ (1,939,884)$

SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
REVENUE 88,557$  208,828$  247,700$
EXPENSES 14,985$  102,439$  258,000$
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 73,572$  106,389$  (10,300)$

SUMMARY
REVENUE 1,681,425$ 5,586,244$  9,479,842$
EXPENSES 767,950$    3,524,561$  12,937,640$

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 913,475$    2,061,683$  (3,457,799)$

2
Prepared By: N Strathdee

10/10/2017



OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED AGENCY TREASURER'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED
TOTALS

 
REVENUES

Property Taxes 1,311,274$                                     
Back Taxes -                                                    
Replacement Taxes 22,092                                             
Recreation Program Fees 187,502                                           
Rec/Fitness Center Fees 75,239                                             
Rec/Aquatic Center Fees 32,063                                             
FRC/Building Rental Fees 13,955                                             
Theme Party Rental Fees 1,100                                               
Recreation Center Fees 8,149                                               
CPW Building Rentals 5,899                                               
Field Rentals 19,766                                             
Interest 4,142                                               
Transfers -                                                    
Miscellaneous 244                                                   

TOTAL- REVENUES 1,681,425$                                     

DISBURSEMENTS
Warrant No.604 518,664$                                         
August, Payroll 249,286                                           

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 767,950$                                         

SEPTEMBER, 2017

Prepared By: Nancy Strathdee
10/10/2017



ASSETS

Consolidated 

Totals

Current Assets

Cash and Investments 8,282,221$      

Receivables - Net of Allowances -                    

  Property Taxes 3,229,652        

  Accounts 412,689           

Due from Other Funds -                    

Prepaids -                    

Inventories 16,707              

     Total Current Assets 11,941,269$    

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets

  Nondepreciable 40,475              

  Depreciable 4,104,958        

  Accumulated Depreciation (2,934,780)       

    Total Noncurrent Assets 1,210,653        

     Total Assets  13,151,922      

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Items-IMRF 95,047              

Total Assets and Deferred outflows of Resources 13,246,969      

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 17,000              

Accrued Payroll 13,236              

Other Payables 781,530           

Due To Other Funds 10,813              

Compensated Absences Payable 8,385                

    Total Liabilities 830,964           

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences Payable 5,700                

Net Pension Liability - IMRF 162,214           

      Total Noncurrent Liabilities 167,914           

     Total Liabilities 998,878           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Items - IMRF

Property Taxes 3,253,434        

    Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,252,312        

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,210,652        

Nonspendable -                    

Restricted 917,686           

Committed 4,477,518        

Unassigned 2,388,801        

     Total Fund Balances 8,994,657        

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances 13,246,969$    

Oak Brook Park District

Consolidated Agency Balance Sheet

as of September 30, 2017

FUND BALANCES

Prepared By: N Strathdee

10/10/2017



AMOUNT RATE MATURITY

EVERGREEN BANK  0.75% VARIES /MONEY MARKET

5,921,318.60$      

 

ILLINOIS FUNDS 

TENNIS CENTER 460,202.59$         VARIES CHECKING A/C

EVERGREEN CREDIT CARD ACCOUNT 397,951.87$         

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 6,779,473.06$      

    OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT 

INVESTMENTS AS OF SEPTEMBER, 2017

Prepared By: N Strathdee

10/10/2017



Oak Brook Park District

Capital Expenditures

As of September 30, 2017

DESCRIPTION VENDOR DB/CR
CAPITAL ASSET 
REPLACEMENT

FACILITY/PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS

IT Security Camera Sterling Network Int 6,247.00$       6,247.00$            
IT Security Camera Shoe Me Cables 454.38            454.38                
Profession Svces  - Central Park Wight & Company 27,432.43        27,432.43             
Locker Room Installment 3 Wight & Company 10,039.37       10,039.37             
Demolition Locker Rooms Alpine Demolition Services 56,610.00       56,610.00             
Plumbing Locker Rooms C.W. Burns Company, Inc. 13,140.00       13,140.00             
General Carpentry Locker Rooms DBM Services Inc. 17,874.00       17,874.00             
Gabian Weir Replacement IDNR 2,825.00         2,825.00              
Legal Services for Capital Projects Robbins Schwartz 16,587.00        16,587.00             
Legal Notice for Special Use Hearing Village of Oak Brook 483.00             483.00                  
Permit Ill Dept of Public Health 1,000.00          1,000.00               

 
 Subtotal-Capital Improvement Fund 152,692.18$   9,526.38$           143,165.80$         

     

Fitness Cardio Equiptment - Pymt 2 of 3
Lease Servicing Center National 
Coop Leasing 32,760.71       32,760.71            

     

 Subtotal-Recreation Fund Capital 32,760.71$     32,760.71           -$                      
    
    

 TOTAL BALANCE 185,452.89$   42,287.09$         143,165.80$         

Prepared By: N Strathdee
10/10/2017





























































































































Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Petty Cash - Corporate

Petty Cash for October 2017

Received By Date Description Account Number Amount
L. Kosey 9/27/2017 Lunch for Sharon and Laure @ Conference 01-01-690-001 $15.00

Total $15.00

L. Gnippe 9/11/17 Popscicle Sticks for Gala Project 01-01-730-001 $2.99
Total $2.99

L. Gnippe 7/25/-8/24/17 Danada,Fusion Academy,Private Bank, Wellness House 01-01-660-002 $41.95
L. Gnippe 9/5/-9/25 Einstein's, Gibsons, Pinstripes,Private Bank , Post Office 01-01-660-002 $29.50

N. Strathdee 9/18/17 DuPage County Clerk 01-01-660-002 $13.48
Total $84.93



Oak Brook Park District
1450 Forest Gate Road
Oak Brook, IL 60523

Petty Cash - RRecreation

Petty Cash for Oct. 2017

Received By Date Description Account Number Amount
D. Thommes

9/11/17 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $40.69
9/12/17 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $14.99
9/25/17 Preschool Supplies 02-31-765-001 $24.00

Total $79.68

L. Pizzello 9/1/17 Hobby Lobby in Westmont 02-01-660-002 $3.21
L. Pizzello 9/20/17 Next Generation in Lombard to pick up Shirts 02-01-660-002 $9.84
L. Pizzello 10/3/17 Costco for Coffee 02-01-660-002 $3.21

M. Azzaretto 9/12/17 Livewell Chiropractor Vendor 02-01-660-002 $2.99
D. Thommes 9/22/17 Tanna Hill Farms, Geneva 02-01-660-002 $34.77

Total $54.02

Grand Total $133.70



9-27-2017  

Oak Brook Park District Earns National Accreditation in Parks and Recreation 

The Oak Brook Park District has become the 8th park and 
recreation agency in Illinois to be accredited by the 
Commission for Accreditation of Park and Recreation 
Agencies (CAPRA) and the National Recreation and Park 
Association (NRPA). The achievement positions the Oak 
Brook Park District among an elite group of fewer than 200 
accredited agencies nationwide. 

“We pursued national accreditation to ensure that we are 
truly doing everything we can to provide the very best in 
park and recreational opportunities for community,” said 
Laure Kosey, executive director for the Oak Brook Park 
District. CAPRA accreditation is the only national 
accreditation for park and recreation agencies, and is a 

measure of an agency’s overall quality of operation, management and service to the community. This mark of distinction 
indicates that an agency has met rigorous standards related to the management and administration of lands, facilities, 
resources, programs, safety and services. 

As part of the accreditation process, the Oak Brook Park District had to demonstrate compliance with 151 recognized 
standards and document all policies and procedures. Often the process helps identify efficiencies and heighten areas of 
accountability, all of which translate into higher quality service and operation to benefit the community. 

“We are immensely proud of the dedication, passion, and hard work of our staff, said Sharon Knitter, president of the 
Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners. “They are committed to pursuing excellence for our residents.” 

The process for accreditation involves a formal application, self-assessments, a site visit by a team of trained visitors that 
results in a written report, and a hearing with the commission to grant accreditation. Once accredited, the agency must 
uphold the standards by submitting an annual report and is reviewed again in five years.  

The Commission is comprised of representatives from NRPA, the American Academy for Park and Recreation 
Administration, the National Association of County Park and Recreation Officials, the International City/County 
Management Association, the Academy for Leisure Sciences, the Armed Forces Recreation Network and the Council of 
State Executive Directors.  

The honor was awarded during the 2017 NRPA Annual Conference in New Orleans and compliments the Oak Brook Park 
District’s other recent national achievements. In 2015, the agency was awarded the National Gold Medal Award for 
Excellence in the Field of Park and Recreation Management. In 2016 the Oak Brook Tennis Center, an enterprise fund of 
the park district, was one of just 12 facilities recognized with a United States Tennis Association (USTA) Outstanding 
Facility Award.  

For more information about CAPRA accreditation, visit www.nrpa.org/CAPRA.  

http://www.nrpa.org/CAPRA


 
 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  

From:  Laure Kosey, Executive Director 

Date:  October 11, 2017 

Re:  September/October 2017: Admin., Corporate Relations, IT & Marketing   

September Board Meeting Follow Up:     

Revised Master Plan 
The Village Board met on September 12 to approve (4-2) the Special Use Permit for the Revised Master Plan.  On 
September 26, the Village Board passed a text amendment to the Special Use Permit including indemnification of 
the Forest Gate Homeowners Association.  On October 10, the Village Board reconsidered the text amendment and 
voted (4-2) to remove the text amendment and return to the original Ordinance language approved on September 
12.  Some language for Forest Gate will be added to our field rental agreement to ensure Little League will not sue 
Forest Gate Homeowners Association.    

 
Bath & Tennis 

The Village of Oak Brook staff has requested a proposal from the park district to manage daily maintenance and 
lifeguards at the outdoor swimming facility and the clay tennis courts.  Staff is meeting with the Village on October 
13th to explore the feasibility of this endeavor.   

 
October Board Meeting Discussion Points: 
 
Family Locker Room Change Order 

The amount of the Change Order is under $500, however, we wanted to document the amount of the contract each 
sub-contractor was receiving.  David Thommes will be explaining this agenda item in more detail.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
  
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 

 



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To: Board of Commissioners and Executive Director, Laure Kosey  
From: Marco Salinas, Chief Financial Officer  
Date: October 11, 2017 
Re: September 2017 Financials  

 
General Fund 

We have now completed five months of the current fiscal year which represents 41.67% of the annual budget.  Year-
to-date (YTD) revenues in this fund equal $1,852,232, which approximates 66% of the annual budget and is a slight 
decrease over prior year’s YTD revenues of $1,864,033.  On the expenditure side, YTD expenditures equal 
$925,206, or approximately 34% of the annual budget, and are lower than prior year’s YTD expenditures of 
$956,871.  YTD, we are experiencing a net surplus of $927,026, which is a 2.2% increase over last year’s net 
surplus of $907,162.  Following is a more detailed analysis of the General Fund’s activities: 
 
Administration- Property Taxes- As described in the prior month’s financials, the second property tax installment 
was due to the DuPage County Treasurer’s Office on September 1, 2017.  As such, we experienced a large increase 
in property tax collections during the month and the amounts that we received from DuPage totaled $1.312 million.  
This revenue is recorded across several funds with the largest portion being allocated to the General Fund.  
 
Administration- Personal Property Replacement Taxes (PPRT)- Current YTD revenues are surpassing last 
year’s balance due to a one-time accounting adjustment that increased revenues by $11,929.73 in this fund.  Back in 
2016 the Park District and many other taxing bodies received notice from the Illinois Department of Revenue (IDOR) 
that they had erroneously distributed too much in PPRT.  At that time, the estimated overpayment to the District was 
approximately $22,092 (allocated across five of our funds).  In response to such notice, we proceeded to reduce 
revenues for the amount of the overpayment and recognized a corresponding liability in anticipation that these funds 
would be recovered by the IDOR from future distributions to the District.  Last month the IDOR notified us that they 
will not seek to recoup any of the overpayment and in response to this latest notice we have proceeded to eliminate 
the liability previously established, and recognized one-time revenue during September 2017. 
 
Central Park- Field rental revenue continues to drive the favorable variance against current budget and prior year 
revenues.  This revenue is currently at $71,650 which is an increase of $18,529, or 35%, over prior year’s amount of 
$53,121.  There are several reasons for these increased revenues including increased usage of our natural grass 
fields, reduced rainfall which has resulted in fewer cancellations, as well as a one-time influx of users from the Oak 
Brook Polo Fields due to the temporary installation of the “Healing Field” exhibit.  Finally, the DuPage Express 
softball organization has been renting our fields which wasn’t the case last year and this has positively impacted our 
revenues.   
 
Saddlebrook Park- Although current YTD expenditures are on target with current budget, they are significantly 
higher than prior year due to the $1,440 purchase of playground mulch which wasn’t purchased last year and the 
incursion of $1,500 in costs for weed control services that were incurred earlier this year than last. 
 
Chillem Park- Current YTD expenditures are ahead of target at 69% of current budget and are also significantly 
higher than prior year.  This is due to a number of reasons including the incursion of $250 in weed control services, 
$620 in tree maintenance costs, and $1,620 for the purchase of mulch.  In the prior year, we did not incur any weed 
and tree maintenance costs, and the purchase of mulch was only $380 and was incurred later in the year.  In 
addition, this year we incurred approximately $440 in costs to repair a backboard for one of the outdoor tennis courts.  
 



 Page 2 

Dean Property- No revenues were budgeted in this cost center in the current fiscal year and last year’s revenue is 
comprised of a beehive sponsorship received from the tennis center. Current YTD expenditures are ahead of target 
at 67% of budget and higher than last year due to the recent purchase of a security camera system and related 
hardware ($3,625).  This system is expected to be installed by the end of November.   
  
Professional Services- The single largest budgeted expenditure in this cost center are legal counsel fees which are 
budgeted at $60,000.  Current YTD costs are at $2,736 versus the $29,862 incurred in the previous year.  There are 
a couple of reasons for this decrease:  Last year’s fees were higher due to the transition from Spiroff & Gosselar to 
Robbins Schwartz.  Also, a large portion of our current fees are directly related to various ongoing capital projects 
(tennis court resurfacing, family locker room project, HVAC replacement, Central Park Improvements) and such 
costs are being capitalized rather than being immediately expensed which is similar to our treatment of other 
professional service fees such as engineering, architectural and consulting fees.  The total of the legal fees that have 
been capitalized this year approximates $20,064.  
 
Contracts- Maintenance DNS- YTD expenditures in this cost center are lower than prior year due to the fact that in 
the prior year the Park District had incurred approximately $5,100 in costs to establish the apiary program and to 
purchase harvesting equipment and related supplies (e.g. honey extractor, smoker, bee suit).  Now that the program 
is in its second year, equipment costs have decreased significantly.     
 
Central Park West- Revenues for this cost center are currently in line with budgeted expectations, however, they 
are lower than prior year due to decreased shelter and gazebo rental revenue as well as alcohol permit revenue.  
YTD revenues total $25,320, $490, and $4,410, respectively, whereas in the prior year such revenues were $40,376, 
$1,305, and $8,103, respectively.  A review of the underlying activity does show that we have experienced 
decreased rentals in the current year. 

Recreation Fund 
YTD revenues in this fund are currently favorable against budget at 55.4% and YTD expenditures are also favorable 
at 29.9% of budget.  When compared to the prior year, revenues are lower by approximately $98,266 (4.4%) and 
expenditures are also lower by $91,451 (6.7%).  This is resulting in a current YTD net surplus of $860,485 which is 
$6,815 (.8%) lower than last year’s net surplus of $867,300.  Following is a more detailed analysis of the Recreation 
Fund’s activities:   
 
Aquatic Recreation Programs- Although YTD revenues are currently favorable against budget at 48%, they do 
reflect a 22% decrease over prior year’s revenues of $376,080.  Further review shows that children’s program 
revenues have decreased from $168,020 in the prior year to $123,095.  In addition, children’s private lesson revenue 
has decreased from $108,050 to $93,766 and children’s swim team revenues have also decreased from $38,118 to 
$29,927.  Staff believes that these decreases are attributed to the recent establishment of private swim schools in 
the villages of Elmhurst and Burr Ridge that is diverting non-resident participants away from the Park District.         
 
Children’s Programs- Revenues in this cost center are currently favorable against budget at $50,868 (61%) and 
against prior year’s revenues of $40,786.  Driving this increase is increased revenues for our youth basketball 
program and sports camps.  In addition, during August 2017 we received a $4,500 sponsorship from Amita Health 
for our playground camp program.  On the expenditure side, activities are favorable against budget at 26% and are 
in line with prior year expenditures. 
 
Preschool Programs- YTD revenues are currently unfavorable against budget and have also decreased over prior 
year.  A closer look at the activity in this cost center reveals that morning preschool revenues have decreased from 
$54,293 in the prior year to $22,003 in the current year.  This variance is due to a change in our methodology for 
recording deferred revenues.  In the current year, preschool revenue is being recognized over the course of the 
school year, which runs from September to May.  In the prior year, we recorded some of the revenues before the 
start of the school year.  This variance between years should narrow as the year progresses.  
 
Pioneer Programs- YTD revenues of $54,746 are below our current budgeted target as well as prior year’s 
revenues of $101,919.  A detailed review of the underlying activity shows that multi-day trip revenue for the current 



 Page 3 

year is at $1,262 whereas in the prior year such revenue was at $43,547.  This decrease is due to the fact that in the 
current year we utilized a 3rd party travel agency (Premier World Discovery) for our September 2017 Cape Cod tour.  
When this occurs, the travel agency collects and records all reservation revenue and incurs all expenditures and 
subsequently remits a “commission” to the Park District. On the other hand, prior year’s trip to Ontario and Quebec 
was administered in-house which resulted in the recognition of all related revenues and expenditures.  On the 
expenditure side, YTD expenditures are favorable against budget at only $36,174, or 22% of budget and are also 
significantly lower than prior year’s expenditures of $71,215 due to the reason described above.  
 
Special Events & Trips- Current YTD revenues of $58,304 are favorable against budget at 64% and are higher 
than prior year’s revenues of $50,732.  Driving this favorable variance and increase over prior year is the receipt of 
$9,600 from Amita Health for sponsorship of our Pink 5k, kid’s and sprint triathlon and for several other special 
events.  In addition, during September we received a $5,000 sponsorship from Evergreen Bank group for our Pink 5k 
race whereas in the prior year similar sponsorships from Amita and Evergreen bank weren’t received until later in the 
year (October and November 2016).  On the expenditure side, this year’s activity is ahead of budget at 56% and 
significantly higher than the prior year due to the timing of our donation to the Hinsdale Hospital Foundation.  This 
year’s $10,135 donation was carried-out in June whereas in the prior year such donation didn’t occur until 
December.  In addition, expenditures related to our summer concert series ($5,375) have been recognized earlier in 
the year than they were last year.  Finally, last year’s expenditure balance reflects a credit (reduction) for unsold beer 
related to Oktoberfest whereas this year we have yet to receive/process such credit from our supplier. 
 
Marketing- Although YTD revenues are currently below budget expectations they are higher than the prior year due 
to the early sponsorship payment received from Amita Health and increased banner sponsorship from Breakaway 
Basketball.   
 
Capital Outlay- The YTD expenditure balance of $32,760.71 represents lease payment 2 of 3 for our fitness center 
exercise equipment. 
 

Recreational Facilities Fund (Tennis Center) 
YTD revenues and expenses in this fund are within current budget expectations at 46.9% and 42.4%, respectively. 
The fund is currently experiencing a net deficit of $186,306 which is the result of the increased spending on capital 
assets and projects.  This year’s capital expenses total $375,097 which is a large increase over last year’s expenses 
of $22,151.  Following is a more detailed analysis of the Tennis Center’s activities: 
 
Programs- Racquet Club- Overall revenues in this cost center are higher than prior year by $57,652, or 9.2%, due 
to various reasons including increased private lesson activity ($69,635 -vs- $56,166) and group lesson activity 
($356,987 -vs- $285,501).  Increases in these revenues have been partially offset by decreased court time revenues 
($53,319 -vs- $84,177).  As expected, the increased revenues have also resulted in an overall increase in expenses 
of $21,842 over prior year.     
 
Capital Outlay- Current YTD costs are higher than prior year due to expenses related to the HVAC upgrade and 
reflective ceiling projects. 
 
 
FINANCE OPERATIONS: 

• Finance has been working with BS&A to develop a schedule for carrying-out our financial software 
conversion.  Representatives will be in our office November 28 - 30 to review existing internal controls and 
processes, and begin designing/building our database and related forms.  The “go live” is tentatively set for 
February 5, 2018. 

• Official notice was sent to Nationwide to terminate their services for our deferred compensation plan. 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES: 
• Staff worked with PDRMA to identify potential risks and additional costs that could be experienced if we were 

to assist the Village with their aquatics program. 



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Oak Brook Park District Board of Commissioners  
From:  Dave Thommes, Director of Recreation & Facilities  
Date:  October 11, 2017 
Re:  Recreation & Facilities Report   

Recreation 
• Preschool started on September 5th and is in full swing. A book fair took place on September 25th and 26th. Both 

full day classrooms are running and are nearly full.  
• The Galaxy Gallop took place on September 29th. The 3 and 4-year-olds received race t-shirts, race numbers and 

medals upon completing a lap of the Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field. Evergreen Bank sponsored the event 
and provided juice, snacks and piggy banks for everyone.  

• Dolphin Station is averaging 6 children every morning and 11 children afterschool. The children enjoy outdoor 
playtime, gym time, arts and crafts, homework, snack and movies on Fridays.  

• Kim and Karen escorted 19 Pioneers to Cape Cod the week of September 17th.  Despite some inclement weather 
the Pioneers enjoyed a busy trip that included Sandwich, Hyannis, Plymouth, Boston, Provincetown and 
Newport, RI! 

Aquatics 
• Portions of the outdoor pool were repainted. 
• The pool deck was thoroughly cleaned with help from the evening custodial staff. 
• A temporary family changing area was put up in party room space to provide additional changing areas during 

construction. 
• The lap pool backwash valve was replaced. 
• The concrete at the top of the slide was repaired. 
• The planter by the spa was rehabbed.  Old plants were removed and lava rock was added.  Staff will be adding 

new plants soon. 
• The leisure pool acid washed. 
• The lap pool sand filter was cleaned. 
• New lifeguards were trained and several new swim lesson and party host staff were hired and trained.  

Athletics 
• September was a great month for field rentals. We have seen an increase in grass field users due to polo fields 

being down for a while. 
• Oktoberfest was well-attended and the profit margin was $1,500 greater than budget. 
• This fall we started a new Adult Self-Defense class that is for males and females taught by our tae kwon do 

instructor, Mr. Bill.  
• Youth Basketball registration is already at 38 kids enrolled. At this point last year, we were at 24 kids enrolled. 

The program will begin in January. 
Fitness 

• Sonja Vukajlovic, an art student with autism at College of DuPage and a member of our Fitness Floor Staff, is 
having a solo art exhibit at the Glen Ellyn Public Library during October. 

• Staff held an impromptu member appreciation day on Thursday, September 28th. It was a great opportunity to 
talk with patrons. Many were positive and appreciative of staff and our facility. Raffle prizes were given away. 

  



 Page 2 

 
Tennis 

• The Tennis Center hosted Oak Brook Tennis Center Fall I Open tournament with 57 participants on September 
16th – 18th. 

• A new session of group programming and Seasonal Court Time started on September 5th. 
Facilities 

• Maintenance staff installed soap and toilet paper dispensers in locker room areas. 
• We gained forty-four members in September. 

September retentions results: 
September-17 

  Retained Total Rate 

Aquatic 178 189 94.2% 

Aqua/Ten 2 2 100.0% 

Fitness 364 375 97.1% 

Fit/Aqua 178 182 97.8% 

Fit/Ten 29 31 93.5% 

Premiere 30 36 83.3% 

        

Yearly Total 781 815 95.8% 

EFT Aqua 691 694 99.6% 
EFT 

Aqua/Ten 31 31 100.0% 

EFT Fitness 1042 1065 97.8% 

EFT Fit/Aqua 563 578 97.4% 

EFT Fit/Ten 72 73 98.6% 
EFT 

Premiere 117 118 99.2% 

        

Yearly & EFT 3297 3374 97.7% 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Aquatic Party Statistics

Total # Parties Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
Splash Birthday 19 32 27 30 23 28 20 10 1 190

Super Splash Birthday 11 6 11 12 8 12 10 7 77
Group  (by day) 8 4 7 6 2 2 3 6 38

Private (indoors only) 6 7 7 3 2 2 0 0 1 28
Private (indoor/outdoor combo) 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 2 5

Splash Island Birthday 0 0 0 0 0 2 6 3 11
Camp Rentals 1 0 3 0 2 11 18 9 44

Lane Rental (lap only) 0 0 0 1 8 0 26 0 35
Scout 1 3 4 3 2 3 12 0 28

Total # Parties 46 52 59 55 47 60 98 37 2 0 0 0 456

2016 65 60 61 80 84 90 80 68 34 49 44 46 761
2015 52 58 71 51 65 77 82 47 37 44 49 42 675
2014 51 48 77 58 69 66 46 45 48 51 58 50 667
2013 53 65 73 81 70 61 34 34 28 46 61 39 645
2012 40 55 43 65 43 59 46 29 33 44 64 41 562
2011 39 42 51 71 51 51 30 25 19 30 35 36 480
2010 37 55 57 39 55 40 31 28 21 31 38 37 469
2009 40 53 53 43 45 45 35 35 18 28 37 61 493
2008 48 62 73 78 53 44 37 39 35 30 43 31 573

2017 Aquatic Party Statistics



Oak Brook Park District
Aquatic Center

Swim Lesson and Swim Team Statistics

Summer Fall Wint/Spr Total
2008/2009 1061 986 1463 3510
2009/2010 1376 1146 2237 4759
2010/2011 1552 1404 2457 5413
2011/2012 1632 1534 2481 5647
2012/2013 1733 1673 2680 6086
2013/2014* 1826 1687 2354 5867
2014/2015 2375 1545 2181 6101
2015/2016 2202 1562 2457 6221
2016/17 1995 1451 2201 5647
2017/18 1721 899

Summer Fall/Winter Spring 
2007/2008 108 76
2008/2009 23 33 11
2009/2010 20 57 29
2010/2011 41 79 36
2011/2012 62 99 50
2012/2013 59 131 33
2013/2014 69 101 55
2014/2015 60 100 39
2015/2016 34 56 27
2016/17 32 51 21
2017/18 25 44

Swim Lesson Statistics

*2014/15 Increase in kids who signed up for full season right away meant less spots available for spring.  

Swim Team Statistics

0
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000
7000

2008/2009 2009/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014* 2014/2015 2015/2016

Swim Lesson Statistics

Swim Lesson Statistics Summer Swim Lesson Statistics Fall

Swim Lesson Statistics Wint/Spr Swim Lesson Statistics Total



Oak Brook Park District
Athletic Fields Rental Report

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 Actual

Hours 149 116 86 130 165 190 97 28 5 26 108 135 1,233 1,113
Revenue $11,855 $7,598 $3,236 $9,478 $8,602 $10,652 $5,313 $478 $500 $2,600 $8,334 $10,115 $78,758 $78,489

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 Actual

Hours 207 105 138 177 191 196 0 0 0 0 0 93 1,106 1,328
Revenue $2,500 $2,200 $600 $650 $1,550 $1,075 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,275 $9,850 $14,981

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 16/17 YTD 15/16 Actual

Hours 118 118 147 70 222 246 9 0 0 0 0 57 987 1,179
Revenue $3,123 $1,924 $735 $960 $4,062 $3,422 $912 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,508 $16,645 $27,914

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 YTD

Hours 177 103 109 180 188 757 646
Revenue $13,262 $5,222 $2,103 $10,385 $11,120 $42,092 $40,768

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 YTD

Hours 159 140 133 202 211 845 817
Revenue $4,203 $2,248 $833 $1,138 $6,713 $15,133 $7,500

Month May June July August September October November December January Feb March April 17/18 YTD 16/17 YTD

Hours 88 148 151 209 183 779 675
Revenue $2,778 $4,157 $1,284 $2,425 $4,235 $14,878 $10,804

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2016/2017 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Evergreen Bank Group Athletic Field

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Natural Grass Soccer Fields

Athletic Field Usage 2015/2016 Fiscal Year Baseball Fields



Oak Brook Park District
Facility Statistics and Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 45,124 40,601 32,809 32,567 30,733 33,211 23,428 17,907 17,578 23,112 31,682 37,338 366,090

Weekday Avg. 1,475 1,387 1,107 1,077 1,083 1,240 854 646 631 814 1,014 1,267 1,050
Weekend Avg. 1,419 1,436 1,051 973 768 743 634 382 541 601 1,039 1,183 898

2017 43,582 37,431 45,170 31,760 31,932 35,136 33,194 27,695 17,587 303,487
Weekday Avg. 1,355 1,252 1,597 1,107 1,069 1,342 1,165 911 637 1,159
Weekend Avg. 1,531 1,551 1,054 1,071 736 700 944 887 467 993

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 268 258 227 220 231 209 160 203 177 211 224 248 2,636

Gym Rentals 182 175 131 127 130 120 81 114 102 139 137 164 1,602
Room Rentals 79 83 86 81 88 64 56 68 61 70 75 74 885
CPW Rentals 9 8 10 12 13 25 23 21 14 2 12 10 159
CPW Revenue $2,763 $3,325 $3,258 $4,840 $4,713 $10,105 $9,535 $6,335 $5,650 $593 $3,823 $4,325 $59,263

2017 231 198 224 200 147 158 154 163 149 1,624
Gym Rentals 164 132 136 112 82 81 81 89 90 967
Gym Revenue 11,855.00$ 11,040.00$ 22,895.00$   
Room Rentals 57 56 69 77 55 56 57 58 45 530
Room Revenue 4,580.00$   2,565.00$   7,145
CPW Rentals 10 10 19 11 10 21 16 16 14 127
CPW Revenue $3,745 $3,360 $6,413 $4,330 $2,395 $9,430 $7,143 $5,575 $6,893 $49,283

January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTAL
2016 2 3 3 7 6 8 1 2 3 5 1 1 42

2017 4 2 4 7 5 4 9 2 5 42

Theme Parties

 Facility Usage

Facility Rentals



Oak Brook Park District 
Family Recreation Center 
Membership Usage Data

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2014 2,231 2,257 2,292 2,309 2,323 2,294 2,280 2,316 2,291 2,218 2,307 2,282
Resident 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 69% 69% 69% 69% 67%

Non Resident 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 31% 31% 31% 31% 33%
EFT 1,929 1,947 1,979 2,030 1,972 1,954 1,906 1,965 1,981 1,932 1,961 2,035

2015 2,368 2,412 2,467 2,489 2,520 2,572 2,628 2,464 2,636 2,564 2,534 3,299
Resident 67% 67% 67% 67% 67% 66% 66% 64% 65% 65% 63% 54%

Non Resident 33% 33% 33% 33% 33% 34% 34% 36% 35% 35% 37% 46%
EFT 2,123 2,141 2,195 2,192 2,149 2,243 2,207 2,263 2,318 2,277 2,556 2,492

2016 3,524 3,456 3,704 3,623 4,053 4,204 4,333 4,220 3,603 3,571 3,600 3,757
Resident 54% 53% 54% 56% 54% 52% 52% 52% 56% 55% 57% 56%

Non Resident 46% 47% 46% 44% 46% 48% 48% 48% 44% 45% 43% 44%
EFT 2,216 2,674 2,188 2,170 2,205 2,177 2,212 2,207 2,207 2,197 2,209 2,329

2017 3,901 3,715 3,686 3,848 4,150 4,230 4,283 3,812* 3711*
Resident 55% 53% 53% 54% 53% 52% 52% 54% 55%

Non Resident 45% 47% 47% 46% 47% 48% 48% 46% 45%
EFT 2,481 2,495 2,514 2,538 2,499 2,499 2,511 2,529 2,513

January February March April May June July August September October November December

2014 8,783 9,082 9,826 9,290 8,291 8,440 7,960 7,597 7,897 8,805 8,625 8,403

2015 10,055 8,974 9,813 8,938 8,713 9,082 8,655 8,545 7,911 8,612 8,261** 10,880

2016 13,418 13,216 12,915 12,360 11,828 11,750 11,538 10,900 9,097 10,625 10,233 10,034

2017 12,631 11,559 12,351 11,245 14,711 16,596 17,065 12,568* 8238*

*Members

Usage

*Locker Room Renovation began August 14, 2017



 
 
 
 

Memo 
To:  Board of Commissioners  
From:  Bob Johnson, Director of Parks and Planning  
Date:  October 11, 2017 
Re:  Board Report  

 

• The Central Park Improvements project is currently being prepared for the permitting phase.  

• The “Bee Team” harvested approximately 7 gallons of honey from the hives at Dean Nature Sanctuary. The bees appear 
to be in good health going into the fall/winter season.   

• Staff planted over 200 fall mums and nearly 2 dozen trees over the past several weeks.  

• The pond at the Dean Nature Sanctuary was stocked with Largemouth Bass. In the spring, emergent plants will be added 
along the shoreline in the shallow water which will improve the pond aesthetics and provide habitat and cover for small 
animals and fish.  

• The Park District obtained proposals for waste and recycling services for the facilities at Central Park.  Please see the 
agenda history.  

 

 









1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 17-1017 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CHANGE ORDER 
INVOLVING AN INCREASE IN THE CONTRACT PRICE OF $10,000.00 OR MORE  

(FAMILY LOCKER ROOM PROJECT)  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 720, Section 5/33E-9, 
the Oak Brook Park District (the “District”) is required to make specific findings prior to 
authorizing any change order relative to a contract which would increase or decrease the dollar 
amount of the contract by $10,000.00 or more; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Executive Director has presented and recommended the proposed 
change order to the contract between the District and the following contractor,  

A. CW Burns Co., Inc.   Change Order 3  $   341.00 
 

WHEREAS, copies of said change orders are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 
part hereof, to the District’s Board of Park Commissioners (“Board”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said change orders attached hereto as Exhibit “A: would increase the 
project’s cost by $341.00; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners previously approved change orders in the total 
amount of $44,285 during the August 21, 2017 and September 18, 2017 Board Meetings; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the total sum of the previously approved change orders and the change 
order attached hereto as Exhibit “A” would increase the contract price by $44,626 thereby 
requiring the Board’s authorization to accept the change order attached hereto. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF PARK 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE OAK BROOK PARK DISTRICT, DuPage and Cook 
Counties, Illinois, as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That after reviewing the explanation of the Executive Director as to the 
necessity of and reasons for the change order attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, the Board finds as 
follows: 
 

A. That the circumstances which necessitated said change order were not reasonably 
foreseeable at the time the contract was entered into. 

 
B. That the basis of the change order was not within the contemplation of the contract when 

the contract was signed. 
 
C. That it is in the best interests of the District to approve the change order in its proposed 

form.  
 



2 
 

D. That to the extent that it may have been necessary to go to bid relative to the work 
contemplated by said change order, bidding is hereby specifically waived as to the 
change order work. 

 
SECTION 2.  That having made the findings set forth in Section 1 above, the Board 

hereby approves the change order attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and directs and authorizes the 
Board’s President to execute said change order on behalf of the District. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 16th  DAY OF October, 2017 
      
AYES: ____________________________________________________ 

NAYS: ____________________________________________________ 

OTHER: ___________________________________________________ 

 
             
           Sharon Knitter, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Laure Kosey, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



3 
 

 
Exhibit A 

Change Orders 
 
 

A. C.W. Burns Co., Inc   Change Order 3  $341.00 
 
 
 



Exhibit A.









RESOLUTION NO. R17-1018 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE OAK BROOK LITTLE 

LEAGUE RENTAL AGREEMENT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the Oak Brook Park District (the "District") heretofore approved a rental 
agreement for use of the District’s ball fields by the Oak Brook Little League; and  

WHEREAS, modifications to the rental agreement require Oak Brook Little League to 
covenant not to sue the Forest Gate Subdivision Homeowners Association, Forest Gate residents, 
or any of its representatives as defined in the Agreement, for any and all claims that may be 
asserted against such Forest Gate parties; and 

WHEREAS, Oak Brook Little League has agreed to this requirement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Oak Brook Park District, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1.  The “Oak Brook Little League Rental Agreement", between the District and Oak 
Brook Little League (the "Agreement") has been modified to require Oak Brook Little League to 
covenant not to sue the Forest Gate Subdivision Homeowners Association, Forest Gate Residents, or 
any of its representatives as defined in the Agreement, for any and all claims that may be asserted 
against such Forest Gate parties, and such modification to the Agreement has been authorized and 
approved. 

Section 2.  Oak Brook Little League has signed the Agreement; attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

Section 3.  In receipt of the signed Agreement, the Oak Brook Park District Board of 
Commissioners authorizes the rental of its ball fields to the Oak Brook Little League. 

Section 4.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 
Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict. 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval as provided by law.  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 16th DAY OF October 2017. 

AYES: ________________________________________ 

NAYS: ________________________________________ 

ABSENT: ______________________________________ 



 

 2 

____________________________________ 
Sharon R. Knitter, President 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 













Oak Brook Park District 
Agreement for Naming Rights 

In recognition of the efforts being made by the Oak Brook Park District (“District”) 
Board of Commissioners to obtain additional funds to develop and renovate the District’s 
buildings and facilities, and in consideration of a matching gift up to $______ (“the 
“Donation”) in a matching grant of a 1 to 1 ratio to the District’s Foundation. The District 
and the ____________ (the “Donor”) intend to establish a right to name the universal 
playground at the Northeast corner of Central Park to be known as: 

“  Sandlot” 

It is the intent of the District and the Donor that the universal playground of the District’s 
Central Park shall be named “______ Sandlot” and marked with appropriate signage at 
the entrance of the play area. 

In consideration of the Donation, the right to have the universal playground of the 
District’s Central Park named as provided herein will be in effect for a period of twenty-
five (25) years; provided that such naming rights may be extended after the twenty-five 
(25) years upon the written approval of the Donor and the District’s Board of
Commissioners.

The District’s Board of Commissioners and the Donor named in this Agreement 
acknowledge the Donation and the terms stated within by the signatures of their duly 
authorized representatives on duplicate copies of this Agreement. 

Date: _________________, 2017 

Oak Brook Park District   (Donor’s/Foundation Name) 

__________________________________           _____________________________   
Sharon Knitter, President   (Donor’s name) 
Board of Commissioners   Title 


	October 16, 2017 Agenda
	October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room

	Agenda Vote October 16, 2017
	October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	October 16, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	September 18 2017 meeting minutes.pdf
	September 18, 2017 – 6:30 p.m.
	Canterberry Room
	10. ADJOURNMENT


	#1-September 2017 Financials-General Fund
	#2-September 2017 Financials-Recreation Fund
	#3-September 2017 Financials-Tennis Center
	#4-September 2017-Consolidated Graphs
	#5-INCOME STATEMENT YTD SEPTEMBER 2017
	#6-Consolidated Agency Treasurer's Report September, 2017
	#7-Consolidated Agency Balance Sheet_September, 2017
	#8-INVESTMENTS SEPTEMBER, 2017
	#9-CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
	Warrant 604
	Copy of Petty Cash Corporate October 2017
	Sheet1

	Petty Cash Recreation October 2017
	Sheet1

	CAPRA Accrediation Press Release
	October 2017 AIM Board Report
	Finance Department Memo- September 2017
	October 2017 Board Report
	AquaticBoardStat September 2017 Stats
	Birthday Parties
	Swim lessons

	September 2017 Athletic Field Revenue Report
	Sheet1

	Board Facility Stats Comparison September 2017
	Facility Statistics

	Update Non Staff Membership 2016-2017 Stats
	Sheet2

	September 2017 report
	Agenda History - Unfinished
	Waste Management prices 10-11-17
	Agenda Histories- new
	Changeorder R-17-1017 Family Locker Room - CW Burns.pdf
	Sharon Knitter, President

	Resolution 17-1018 Authorizing and Approving Little League Rental Agreement.pdf
	Laure L. Kosey, Executive Director




